Thespian Troupe 2196 Constitution

Adopted: 2021

Article I: Name, Purpose, and Governance

Section 1. Name: This organization shall be called Troupe <u>2196</u>. The troupe has been chartered by <u>San Dieguito High School Academy</u>. The charter affiliates it with the International Thespian Society (ITS).

Section 2. Purpose: The troupe is the honors component of the school's theatre program. Its purpose shall be the advancement of standards of excellence in theatre. More specifically, the troupe will encourage students to attain a better mastery of the theatre arts and will reward those who achieve it with induction into the troupe. Thespians achieving honor ranks and scholar distinctions shall receive recognition of their exemplary accomplishments.

Section 3. Governance: This troupe constitution and its bylaws are two components of a hierarchy of documents that govern members of the International Thespian Society and its parent organization, the Educational Theatre Association (EdTA). The documents affecting troupes, in order of authority, are: the EdTA Code of Regulations, the membership policy, the troupe handbooks, the troupe constitution, and troupe bylaws. This constitution may not be altered in any way that conflicts with a superseding document or school policies and procedures.

Article II: Organization and Officers

Section 1. Membership: Membership is achieved by complying with all induction criteria as defined in the troupe handbook. Members must earn 10 points and 5 must be from SDA productions. Inductees must also earn the points by participating in two different groups. The Thespian point system is the official guideline for awarding induction points. Any changes to induction criteria, including the Thespian point system, must be adopted as a troupe bylaw.

Subsection 1: Privileges revoked will include complimentary tickets to SDA shows, discounted tickets for outside shows, receipt of honor cord as a senior, nomination of awards for annual thespian banquet, inclusion in yearbook thespian club photo.

Section 2. Officers: The Thespian troupe shall have the following officers: president, vice president, secretary, treasurer, and clerk/scribe/public-relations. Duties shall be defined in the troupe's bylaws.

Section 3. Elections: The troupe shall elect officers for the next school year in the last month of the year. All members who wish to be considered will tell the current officers, their names will then be put on a ballet. In the following meeting, the troupe will vote, circling the position they want each candidate to be.

Article III: Meetings and Participation

Section 1. Meetings: Thespian troupe meetings shall be held weekly throughout the school year. Special meetings may be called by the troupe director, any officer, or by a quorum of Thespians.

Section 2. Denial of participation: Any Thespian who causes deliberate dissension or disruption of any production or business meeting may be denied participation in troupe activities by a vote of two-thirds of the troupe's membership and the consent of the troupe director. Any member requesting reinstatement of participation rights may have them restored with the consent of the troupe director and two-thirds of the troupe's membership. In **extreme cases**, a Thespian's status as a member in good standing of the local troupe may be suspended or withdrawn by the troupe director for just cause. Such decisions are subject to oversight by the school administration. This may affect any or all participation rights and benefits that require the troupe director's authorization, but will not affect membership and benefits that come directly from the ITS national office.

Article IV: Dues and Fees

Section 1. Dues: There shall be no mandatory dues for Thespian induction except as provided by the EdTA Board of Directors.

Section 2. Fees: Troupes may approve additional fees for local Thespian troupe participation. This requires consent of the troupe director and a two-thirds vote of the active troupe members at a regular troupe meeting. The school and its troupe director may also assess user fees in accordance with school policy.

Article V: Bylaws

Section 1. Purpose: Bylaws provide additional guidance for the governance and operations of the

troupe. No bylaw may be in conflict with the EdTA Code of Regulations, membership policy,

troupe handbook, troupe constitution, or school policy or procedures.

Section 2. Adoptions and amendments: The troupe director may adopt or amend bylaws as

deemed appropriate. Bylaws may also be added or amended by approval of a simple majority of

the troupe's active membership and the consent of the troupe director.

Article VI: Amendments

Section 1. Exclusions: Article I may not be amended.

Section 2. Procedure: Articles other than Article I may be amended by approval of two-thirds of

the troupe's active membership with the consent of the troupe director. This constitution and its

amendments shall be subject to change according to any or all requirements of the International

Thespian Society.

Article VII: Attendance

Section 1. A student arriving late to or leaving early from meetings or rehearsals without a

reason considered valid by the troupe director will receive a demerit. Three such

demerits/offenses will be counted as an absence from a meeting without excuse.

Section 2. Weekly meetings will take place at lunch on Tuesdays. Changes will be posted by the

beginning of school on the day of the meeting.

Section 3. Irregular attendance indicates a lack of interest; therefore, any member absent four (4)

meetings per school year without a written excuse submitted to the secretary, stage manager, or

troupe director shall be seen as inactive. The troupe director has sole authority to reverse the

suspension.

Section 4. Absences shall accumulate for only one school year at a time.

Article VIII: Thespian Points

Section 1. Induction points must be earned over the course of more than one production. In years when there is only one production, this requirement is waived.

Section 2. Induction points will be awarded for theatre-related work done outside the school's theatre program. To qualify for points, a copy of the program or other verification must be provided.

Section 3. One-half of an induction point may be earned for attending non-school productions. To qualify, a ticket stub or a program must be provided as proof of attendance. A critique of the show (two-page minimum) must be submitted within one week of the production.

Article IX: Induction

Section 1. An induction ceremony shall be held at least once each year. Additional ceremonies may be held as often as deemed necessary by the troupe director.

Section 2. Each inductee must provide his or her current mailing address and email address. Individual inductees are responsible for their own induction fees unless payment has been prearranged by a booster group, fundraising, or other source. The troupe will pay for additional honor items that are included in its officially adopted recognition system. Students may ask the troupe director to purchase honor items on their behalf that are not included in the troupe's official system. Such items will be available at the troupe director's discretion and at each student's expense.

Section 3. The troupe director and troupe officers determine the time, place, schedule, and format of induction ceremonies.

Section 4. The troupe director and president conduct inductions. The principal, superintendent, and/or like officials will be offered a role in the ceremony whenever possible. The troupe director is responsible for training induction ceremony speakers, scheduling and rehearsing said speakers, and preparing the stage and induction properties as directed by the troupe director.

Article X: Officers

Section 1. Duties: Troupe officer duties are defined below. The troupe director may assign other duties.

- A. The president presides at all meetings, appoints all standing and special committees, attends Theatre Arts Council meetings, and directs and supervises troupe activities.
- B. The vice president presides in the absence of the president and is responsible for the induction of new members.
- C. The secretary keeps the records of meetings and attends to troupe correspondence.
- D. The treasurer keeps the troupe's books and pays bills, and may act as business manager of Thespian productions.
- E. The public relations officer will be in charge of meeting entertainment, social media platforms, and publicity.
- F. All officer positions must be listed in the troupe's constitution.
- **Section 2.** Requirements for all elected officers are as follows: each student must be an active member of the troupe for at least one school year, and at the time of election must be enrolled in grades 10 or 11.
- Section 3. Students may self-nominate from the floor. Officers will be elected by a majority vote.
- **Section 4.** Voting will be done by secret written ballot at an official troupe meeting.
- **Section 5.** Three members, including one officer, may request a recall election of all or any elected officers. This request must be submitted to the troupe director in writing and state the need for such an election. A special meeting will be scheduled within five school days upon receipt of the request for the purpose of voting on whether or not a recall election is necessary. Two-thirds of the membership is required to mandate a recall election. If a recall election is necessary, election of officers will follow the procedure set in Sections 2 through 4 above.
- **Section 6.** Officers shall be installed at the last social or program meeting of the school term.

Article XI: Troupe Activities

Section 1. The troupe is not a secret organization. All interested faculty, students, parents, Honorary Thespians, troupe alumni, and administrators are welcome at troupe meetings.

Section 2. The troupe may cooperate with departments and clubs in the school in helping or joining them with their programs.

Article XII: Conflict Resolution

Section 1. In the event issues or conflicts arise between a Thespian and the troupe director that cannot be solved through communication between the two parties, the issue should be resolved by the school administration as indicated in the troupe handbook.

Adopted: 2021	
Troupe Director: Stephanie Siers	Troupe President: Tegan Schlosser
Signature:	
Signature:	